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Kent S. Robinson
Acting United States Attorney
District ofOregon
1000 SW Third Avenue, Ste. 600
Portland, OR 97204-2902

(503) 727-1000
Fax: (503) 727-1117

February 5,2010

Gerald Needham
Assistant Federal Public Defender
101 Southwest Main Street, Suite 1700
Portland, OR 97204
Re:

United States v. Joel D. Surprenant, CR 09-245-JO
Plea Agreement Letter

Dear Counsel:
1.
Parties/Scope: This plea agreement is between this United States Attorney's Office
(USAO) and defendant, and thus does not bind any other federal, state, or local prosecuting,
administrative, or regulatory authority. This agreement does not apply to any charges other than
those specifically mentioned herein.
Charees: Defendant agrees to plead guilty to Count 1 of the Indictment, which charges
2.
the crime of bank fraud in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1344.
3.
Elements and Facts: Defendant understands that the elements of the offense of Bank
Fraud are as follows:
(1)

A defendant knowingly carried out a scheme or plan to obtain money or property
from First Franklin Financial Corporation by making false statements or promises;

(2)

Defendant knew that the statements or promises were false;

(3)

The statements were material;

(4)

Defendant acted with the intent to defraud;

(5)

First Franklin Financial Corporation was federally insured

Defendant stipulates that the government can prove each of the following facts beyond a
reasonable doubt at trial:
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(I)
On or about August, 2006, in the District of Oregon, defendant devised a
material scheme and artifice to defraud First Franklin Financial Corporation, a financial
institution, and to obtain money from said institution by materially false and fraudulent pretenses,
representations and promises .
(2). Defendant Joel D. Surprenant, acting as a residential mortgage loan broker,
prepared a uniform residential loan application on behalf of himself as the borrower.
(3). Defendant Joel D. Surprenant knowingly falsified his financial qualifications on
the uniform residential loan application.
(4). Defendant Joel D. Surprenant knowingly created false supporting documentation,
including pay stubs, to corroborate his false financial qualifications on the uniform residential
loan application.
(5). Defendant Joel D. Surprenant knowingly inflated the sale price of the residence in
order to receive a kickback from the seller outside of the closing of the transaction.
(6). Defendant Joel D. Surprenant knowingly identified a co-worker, Adam Durham, as
the mortgage broker, and forged Adam Durham's signature on the uniform residential loan
application.
(7). Defendant Joel D. Surprenant submitted his false uniform residential loan
application to First Franklin Financial Corporation, a financial institution, with the intent that the
financial institution would approve the mortgage loan based upon the false financial
qualifications provided in his uniform residentialloan application.
(8). Defendant Joel D. Surprenant closed on the approved loan without advising the
financial institution of the false fmancial qualifications provided in the uniform residential loan
application.
(9).
As a result of defendant's conduct, First Franklin Financial Corporation suffered a
loss of $96, 393.53.
(10). Defendant also admits that he committed bank fraud by engaging in two similar
fraudulent loan schemes regarding two properties in Bend, Oregon. The scheme involved three
mortgage loans through Bank of America in which defendant identified his brother, William
Surprenant, as the purchaser, without William Surprenant's knowledge or consent. After closing
the loans, defendant failed to make the mortgage payments and the properties went into
foreclosure. Defendant agrees that the total losses in the Bend, Oregon loans total approximately
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$145,000 and that those loses shall be considered as relevant conduct for guideline and
restitution purposes pursuant to U.S.S.G. § l.B1.3.
4.
Penalties: The maximum sentence for violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1344 is 30 years
imprisonment, a fine of $1 ,000,000, five years of supervised release, and a $100 fee assessment.
Defendant agrees to pay the $100 fee assessment by the time of entry of guilty plea or explain to
the Court why this cannot be done.
5.
DismissaUNo Prosecution: The USAO will move at the time of sentencing to dismiss
any remaining counts against defendant. The USAO further agrees not to bring additional
charges against defendant in the District of Oregon arising out of this investigation, known to the
USAO at the time of this agreement.
6.
Sentencin& Facton: The parties agree that the Court must first determine the applicable
advisory guideline range, then determine a reasonable sentence considering that range and the
factors listed in 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a). Where the parties agree that sentencing factors apply, such
agreement constitutes sufficient proof to satisfY the applicable evidentiary standard.
7.
Guidelines Calculations: The parties agree that U.S.S.G. §§ 2Bl.l and l.B1.3 applies in"
this case. The parties compute the guidelines as follows as of the date of this plea agreement.
(I) USSG § 2X1.1/2Bl.l(a)(I) - Base Offense Level
(2) USSG § 2B1.1(b)(I)(G) -loss greater than $200,000
Base Offense
(3) USSO § 3E1.1 - Acceptance of Responsibility

Total Offense Level

7
12
19

:...1
16

Both parties anticipate the defendant will be in Criminal History Category I; resulting in a
range of21-27 months (Zone D).
8.
Acceptance of Responsibility: Defendant must demonstrate to the Court that he fully
admits and accepts responsibility under U.S.S.G. § 3EI.I for his unlawful conduct in this case.
If defendant does so, the USAO will recommend a three-level reduction in defendant's offense
level (two levels if defendant's offense level is less than 16). The USAO reserves the right to
change this recommendation if defendant, between plea and sentencing, commits any criminal
offense, obstructs or attempts to obstruct justice as explained in U.S.S.O. § 3e1.l, or acts
inconsistently with acceptance of responsibility as explained in U.S.S.O. § 3El.I.
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9.
Guideline Recommendation: So long as defendant accepts responsibility as explained
above, the USAO will recommend a sentence at the low-end of the calculated range to be
followed by a five year period of supervised release. Defendant is permitted to ask for a
departure and for alternatives to incarceration. Defendant understands that the charge he is
pleading guilty to, Bank Fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1344, is a Class B felony. Under 18
U.S.C. § 3561, a probationary sentence is not pennitted for a Class B felony.

1O.Additional Departures: Pursuant to U.S.S.G § 5K 1.1 the USAO agrees to request that the
court depart one level downward from the advisory sentencing guideline range, reflecting the
defendant's pre-plea cooperation and assistance in the investigation of other persons. Defendant
agrees not to seek any downward departures or adjustments to the advisory sentencing guideline
range, or to seek a sentence below that range, except as specified in this agreement.

11.
Waiver of AppeallPost-Conviction Relief: Defendant knowingly and voluntarily
waives the right to appeal from any aspect of the conviction and sentence on any grounds, except
for a claim that: (1) the sentence imposed exceeds the statutory maximum, or (2) the Court
arrives at an advisory sentencing guideline range by applying an upward departure under the
provisions of Guidelines Chapters 4 or 5K, or (3) the Court exercises its discretion under 18
U.S.C. § 3553(a) to impose a sentence which exceeds the advisory guideline sentencing range.
Should defendant seek an appeal, despite this waiver, the USAO may take any position on any
issue on appeal. Defendant also waives the right to file any collateral attack, including a motion
under 28 U.S.C. § 2255, challenging any aspect of the conviction or sentence on any grounds,
except on grounds of ineffective assistance of counsel, and except as provided in Fed. R. Crim.
P. 33 and 18 U.S.C. § 3582(c)(2).
12.
Restitution: Defendant agrees that the Court will order restitution in this matter and that
restitution order shall be the full amount of the loss suffered by any person harmed by
defendant's criminal conduct during the course of his scheme as determined by the Court. See
18 U.S.C. § 3663(a)(2). The actual loss to the bank is, at most, $240,393.53. The USAO will
not seek any fine in favor of restitution.
13.
Court Not Bound: The Court is not bound by the recommendations of the parties or of
the presentence report (PSR) writer. Because this agreement is made under Rule 11(c)(l)(B) of
the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, defendant may not withdraw any guilty plea or rescind
this plea agreement if the Court does not follow the agreements or recommendations of the
parties.
14.
Full DisclosurelReservation of Ri&hts: The USAO will fully inform the PSR writer and
the Court of the facts and law related to defendant's case. Except as set forth in this agreement,
Revised 08/12109

Gerald Needham
Re: Surprenant Plea Letter
February 5, 2010
Page 5

the parties reserve all other rights to make sentencing recommendations and to respond to
motions and arguments by the opposition.

15.
Breach of Plea AlUeement: If defendant breaches the tenns of this agreement, or
commits any new criminal offenses between signing this agreement and sentencing, the USAO is
relieved of its obligations under this agreement, but defendant may not withdraw any guilty plea.
16.
Memorialization of A&reement: No promises, agreements or conditions other than
those set forth in this agreement will be effective unless memorialized in writing and signed by
all parties listed below or confinned on the record before the Court. If defendant accepts this
offer, please sign and attach the original of this letter to the Petition to Enter Plea.

17.

Deadline: lIDs plea offer expires if not accepted by February 8, 2010.

Sincerely,
KENT S. ROBINSON
Ac'
nited States Attorney

I have carefully reviewed every part of this agreement with my attorney. I understand and
voluntarily agree to its terms. I expressly waive my ri ts to appeal as outlined in this
agreement. I wish to plead guilty because, in fact, I
ilty.

_1-----L1__:, 2010
Date
I represent the defendant as legal counsel. I have carefully reviewed every part of this
agreement with defendant. To my knowledge, defendant's decisions to make this agreement and
to plead guilty are informed and voluntary ones.

j.-~
Date
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